LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Date:

Monday 13 June 2022

Time:

7.00 pm

Venue:

Microsoft Teams – please join here

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Linda Bray, Councillor Isla Wrathmell, Ibrahim Dogus, Councillor Olga
Fitzroy, Councillor Adrian Garden, Councillor Liam Jarnecki, Councillor David Robson and Councillor
Ben Curtis

Substitute Members
Councillor Martin Tiedemann, Councillor Irfan Mohammed, Councillor Rezina Chowdhury, Councillor Liz
Atkins, Councillor Ibtisam Adem, Councillor James Bryan, Councillor Maria Kay, Councillor Marianna
Masters, Councillor Scarlett O'Hara, Councillor Deepak Sardiwal and Councillor Timothy Windle
Members required for this meeting are
Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Liam Jarnecki and Councillor Isla Wrathmell

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Julia Skinner, Telephone: 020 7926 0147; Email: jskinner@lambeth.gov.uk

Published on: Wednesday 1 June 2022

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How members of the public can view the meeting online
This is a Microsoft Teams Live Event meeting. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking the above link
will take you to the meeting page where you will be prompted to download the app or watch on the web
instead. Please follow the instructions to watch on the web. On doing so, you can join our live event
anonymously.

How Members of the Committee and public participants can access the meeting
Please refer to the joining instructions you have already received – do not use the link above

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA MAY BE CHANGED AT THE MEETING

Page
Nos.
1

Election of Chair

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para.
4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a
committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from
the meeting room during the whole of the consideration of that matter
and must not participate in any vote on that matter unless a
dispensation has been obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

3

Minutes

1 - 14

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 10 May 2022
and 20 May 2022 as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises
Licence

15 - 20

Strategic Director of Residents Services
Contact: Bina Patel, Licensing Manager, 0207 926 4103
Email: bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk

4a

Getir Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood
Road (Herne Hill Ward)

21 - 54

4b

Theatro, 69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX (Gipsy Hill
Ward)

55 - 94

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Friday 20 May 2022 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:

1

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Linda Bray and Councillor Liz Atkins
(Substitute)

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Linda Bray, SECONDED by Councillor Liz Atkins
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair for the meeting

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
There were none.

3

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 April 2022 be approved and
signed by the Chair as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

4a

348 Kennington Lane London SE11 5HY (Prince's Ward)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a new premises licence. The
Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, 10 and 16 of the Statutory
Guidance, and to Sections 1, 3, 4, 8, 15 and 17 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the
sections particularly relevant to this application. The options available to the Sub-Committee
were set out in paragraph 6 of the report on page 13.
In response to questions from Members, the Licensing Officer confirmed:





This is an application for a new premises, submitted by Upmarket Catering Limited
The applicant was seeking authorisation for Late Night Refreshment for Indoors and
Outdoors, on Monday to Wednesday from 23:00 to 02:00, Thursday to Saturday from
23:00 to 03:00 and Sunday from 23:00 to 01:00.
The opening hours for the premises were proposed as Monday to Wednesday from

Page 2







11:00 to 02:00, Thursday to Saturday from 11:00 to 03:00 and Sunday from 11:00 to
01:00.
In attendance for the applicant was Sarah Le Fevre, Thomas O'Maoileoin and the
applicant Khawar Hussain.
One representation had been received against the application from the Licensing
Authority.
Ms Bina Patel was in attendance representing the Licensing Authority.
A copy of the application can be found from pages 15 to 15 of the main reports pack and
the representation at pages 27 and 28.
Subsequent to the publication of the report, an additional submission by the applicant
was forwarded to the members and relevant parties.

Presentation by the Applicant
Ms Sarah Le Fevre, representative to the applicant, informed the Sub-Committee that:
















It was noted that Khawar Hussain was also in attendance and could answer any
additional questions with regards to further operational detail.
This was a responsible applicant, who was aware of the licensing and wider societal
obligations, which had reflected commercial realities and its ability to operate a business
in residential areas without increasing the risk of public nuisance within the application.
The applicant had considered the aspirations expressed in the Licensing Policy and paid
staff the living wage, as well as premiums above the living wage for work after midnight
hour.
There had been no representation received against the application from residents,
Metropolitan Police, or any other responsible authority other than the Licensing
Authority.
The applicant was seeking hours beyond those preferred hour sets out in the policy, and
it was up to the discretion of the Sub-Committee to decide whether to reduce or extend
the hours.
All conditions proposed to address public nuisance had been agreed by the applicant,
except for the reduction of hours. This included the litter picking and it was believed that
the business could have a positive impact on public nuisance, with reference to its
participation in the annual Great British Spring Clean project.
To address odorous concerns, Ms Le Fevre explained that this was a proposed KFC
premises and benefited from the expertise and a standard of equipment to address this.
There was a potential impact of customers attending in person and delivery drivers at the
premises, which would be addressed through measures of control, where delivery
drivers would receive written instruction and supervised, along with CCTV.
This was an experienced operator, and these controls would uphold the licensing
objectives.

In response to questions from Members, the applicant, Khawar Hussain confirmed:




As detailed in paragraph 4c of the applicant’s submission, the applicant forecast that
between 85 per cent to 90 per cent of business after 23:00 would be delivery sales and
this was learning taken from the London Borough of Southwark, Elephant and Castle
venue.
It was necessary for the business to operate during midnight hours because of the
recovery from the pandemic.

Page 3













There were no complaints of public disorder due to the volume of delivery orders.
The applicant preferred a full license and sought to operate a business to improve the
area. If the late-night license created problems for residents, local authority or
councillors, the next best option was that the applicant only operated by delivery after a
certain hour as in person sales fell from 23:00.
There were between five and eight delivery drivers on the premises at any one time,
however delivery orders were usually larger, and drivers may wait longer than others.
The applicant had one unit in Southwark and around eight venues around London,
mostly KFC, but also a gelato business in Camden that did not require a hot food
licence.
The premises was in construction and residents had not been consulted on the late-night
licence, yet experience was taken from businesses operated around London.
Patrons placed orders electronically and this was sent to the till where the delivery
company automatically assigned the delivery to a driver, who would only be waiting for
approximately 10 to 20 minutes.
There was a parking bay opposite the venue for delivery drivers, which was
approximately five or six meters long, and two parking bay that’s permit parking after
18:00.
It would be difficult to enforce a condition requiring delivery staff to wait inside as they
were employed by third-party delivery companies, however, Condition 7 could require
the licence holder to advice that delivery drivers wait within the premises.

Presentation by Interested Parties
Ms Bina Patel, representing the Licensing Authority said that:
 The representation was made due to the application in excess of policy hours.
 It was not clear that this premises would operate as a KFC prior to the additional
submission provided by the applicant.
 It may be possible to amend the conditions to restrict business to delivery after a certain
hour, such as 02:00, to restrict the congregation of patrons at the premises.
 If the licence holder advises drivers to wait inside the venue, that may create problems
for patrons and delivery drivers interfering with each other.
 If the time indication was based on other premises who deliver after 23:00, perhaps
delivery hours could be restricted to 00:00 as acceptable, if the Sub-Committee should
decide to accept the excess of policy hours.
In response to questions from Members, Ms Bina Patel confirmed:







The proposal to amend the condition restricting sales to delivery was based on the
information provided, such as a surge in delivery sales as a percentage after 23:00.
The concern around the excess of policy hours was because the venue was in proximity
to residential areas, despite there being no representations made by residents.
There was a need for a balance to operate a business, but to also mitigate any issues of
noise nuisance.
In vicinity to the premises was an off-licence, a betting shop and late-night venues being
the Royal Oak, the Vauxhall Tavern and the Eagle Pub.
The Council does receive complaints of antisocial behaviour in relation to late night
refreshment, while the KFC in Brixton responded positively to these complaints.
These complaints may be in relation to delivery drivers congregating or parking outside

Page 4


of these venues and was not always related to the patrons.
Suitable conditions were needed to prevent any rise in public nuisance or antisocial
behaviour, related to these types of premises.

Ms Sarah Le Fevre and the applicant, Mr Khawar Hussain confirmed:
 The applicant would prefer to trade under the licence until 03:00, while the issues raised
about the profile of the area had been understood.
 The next best option would be to restrict later trading hours to delivery.
 At the Southwark premises, the signal drop of in-person sales appeared to be at 01:00.
 The premises would have CCTV in operation, as well as staff in later hours to act as a
deterrent to antisocial behaviour.
 The Police had raised no concerns relating to crime and disorder or antisocial behaviour
in respect to this application.
 The area had been considered and analysis of the Vauxhall Tavern found most events
ended before 00:00 and a small percentage finished at 04:00, later than the terminal
hour being applied for in this application.
 The Vauxhall Tavern was believed to be a responsible operator and there were no
express concerns in how this would impact this operation.
 Most drivers arrive on bicycles and e-bikes, reducing the potential for noise nuisance.
Adjournment and Decision
At 14:48, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the legal advisor and
clerk to deliberate in private.
The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations from the Licensing Authority.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need for any
decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to grant the application subject to all
existing conditions and hours applied for by the applicant, subject to two additional conditions
being:
1. To recommend that drivers wait inside the premises while waiting to collect orders.
2. Where the premises is operating under Late Night Refreshment provisions of the licence,
the orders received after 02:00 shall be by delivery only.
The Sub-Committee believed that the steps taken served to reduce the potential for public
nuisance while delivery drivers wait for collection on request of the applicant, as deliveries would
be conducted by third parties the applicant was limited in their level of control.
The second amendment only affected Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights and was deemed
proportionate as most business after 23:00 was by delivery and this would have minimal impact
on the commercial viability of the business. The condition considered location and proximity to
late night venues that raised the potential for intoxicated patrons after 02:00.
RESOLVED: To grant the application subject to two additional conditions as outlined above.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the application and provided reasons for the decision as outlined above. The Sub-Committee

Page 5
had considered all the options available to them and ultimately felt that the conditions met the
concerns which had been raised. The Chair confirmed that written notification of the decision
would be sent in due course.

The meeting ended at 15:05
CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
13 June 2022
Date of Despatch: Monday 30 May 2022
Contact for Enquiries: Julia Skinner
Tel: 020 7926 0147
E-mail: jskinner@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
Tuesday 10 May 2022 at 7.00 pm

Members Present:

1

Councillor Fred Cowell, Councillor Irfan Mohammed and Councillor
Timothy Windle (Substitute)

Election of Chair
MOVED by Councillor Tim Windle, SECONDED by Councillor Irfan Mohammed
RESOLVED: That Councillor Fred Cowell be elected Chair for the meeting.

2

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests
There were none.

3

Minutes
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 April 2022 be approved and
signed by the Chair as a correct record of the proceedings.

4

Licensing Applications for the Grant / Review of a Premises Licence

4a

Between The Bridges Public Car Park Belvedere Road London SE1 8XZ (Bishop's
Ward)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a time-limited premises
licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 to operate between 25 April 2022 to 23
December 2022. The Sub-Committee’s attention was drawn to chapters 2, 3, 8, 9, 10 and 16 of
the Statutory Guidance, and to Sections 1, 3, 4, 5, 8, 13, 15 and 17 of the Statement of
Licensing Policy, as the ones particularly relevant to this application. The options available to
the Sub-Committee were set out in paragraph 6 of the report on page 15.
In response to questions from Members, the Licensing Officer confirmed:



This was an application for a Time-Limited Premises Licence from 25 April 2022 to 23
December 2022 for Between The Bridges at Hungerford Car Park.
The applicant sought authorisation for the provision of a range of regulated

Page 8







entertainment.
The applicant sought authorisation for the Sale of Alcohol on and off the premises on
Monday to Sunday from 10:00 to 22:45.
The opening hours for the premises were proposed as Monday to Sunday from 09:00 to
23:30.
Representing the applicant, Mr Nathan Chambers, Mr Simon Taylor and Ms Meg John
were in attendance.
One representation has been received against the application from a local resident, Mr
Simon Stewart, who was in attendance.
Subsequent to the publication of the report, additional information had been shared with
all relevant parties including a video to support the representation.
Two separate Temporary Events Notices (TEN) applications had previously been
submitted by the applicant.

Presentation by the Applicant
Mr Simon Taylor informed the Sub-Committee that:









The application was for a capacity of 3000 persons, but this had been reduced to 2000
and was requested that the proposed condition be amended to reflect this.
The first stage of the application was for the summer event, which developed into the
autumn / winter session beginning at Halloween.
There was a wide range of programming for the event, from mainly recorded music two
days a week to a showcase cinema, comedy, sporting events and cabaret, particularly
during half term.
From Friday to Sunday were showcase primary music events.
There was a food and drink offering available throughout the day and patrons were able
to purchase food before moving on to other activities.
There were two separate maximum music noise levels. The first was 59 decibel (dB) and
the higher level was 64 dB which applied from Thursday to Saturday.
These were maximum levels with target levels 3 dB below that, due to wind direction
changes or other factors.

In response to questions from Members, the applicant confirmed that:










Noise limiters had not been referenced within the conditions as they were not seen as
appropriate for outdoor events, but controlled environments such as clubs.
There was a noise management plan, in which the acoustic expert must respond if
requested to by any complainant.
Contact details would be made available to all residents and in the event of complaint,
there would be immediate response with relevant notes in terms of address and time to
assess to determine whether this was a recurring complaint.
The process may conclude that the venue was not responsible for the noise, and this
would then be referred to the Council.
The manager would inform the sound engineer if activity created noise nuisance.
A helpline and complaint procedure had been provided to residents as evident within the
noise management plan.
The two previous complaints emanated from the same building, yet the specific number
of complaints made was not available.
One of the complainants had not received a fast response and this was escalated.

Page 9









Ms Meg John provided her contact details to complainants promptly.
In terms of the dispersal policy, it was not anticipated that 2000 patrons would disperse
at the same hour, while a security team managed the outside area and encouraged
people to disperse quietly and respect residents once they had finished their beverages.
It was noted that no concerns had been raised by the Metropolitan Police regarding
dispersal arrangements.
Casson Square and the Shell building were considered two relevant positions for
monitoring noise nuisance.
Any data collected from Mr Stewart’s premises would enable measuring noise
frequencies at that height to then adjust levels accordingly.
The applicant spoke to the acoustic expert about crowd noises and estimated that it was
not possible to control, which may contribute an increase in one dB.
In terms of containing small increases in dB levels, averages were calculated over a
shorter period of five minutes, which gave an indication as to noise levels.

Presentation by Interested Parties
Mr Simon Stewart, representing local residents, stated that:
 The concerns were specific to the loud music and bass, not crowds, food or drink.
 The public address system (PA) also caused some disturbance.
 Mr Stewart and his family moved into the property in December 2020, before Between
The Bridges opened in May 2021, when they started experiencing noise disturbance.
 Management responded to his concern, but this had not made much difference.
 Seeing the licence application advertised, Mr Stewart raised his objections and the
mediation process had been constructive.
 The proposals had not made much difference to noise levels of the opening night, yet
compared to the previous year, volumes were at lower levels.
 Bass was intensive on Saturday between 21:30 and 23:00.
 Mr Stewart remained concerned noise levels would return to those experienced in the
previous year.
In response to questions from Members, Mr Simon Stewart confirmed:







There was no pattern to the noise disturbance during the day, but between 21:00 and
23:00 levels increased.
Mr Stewart had a young son who needed to be put to bed.
The family was already at an inconvenience and didn’t want a private company to install
sound monitoring technology in their flat. It was suggested that the balcony could be
used as an alternative.
The litigations were not seen to have addressed concerns as noise could still be heard
while all windows and doors were closed.
The sound level on the ground floor was considerably lower and it was thought that
sound was travelling upward and reverberating around the buildings.

In response to questions, Mr Taylor informed the Sub-Committee that:



The applicant could address the concerns with the personal address system.
Obtaining data from the tenth floor by installing a device on the balcony would make
addressing these concerns more efficient.

Page 10







The applicant did not want to cause more disturbance to Mr Stewart’s life.
The 59 dB limit for Sunday to Wednesday was at a level of background noise and 64 dB
for Thursday to Saturday was the minimum noise level for entertainment. Therefore, a
uniform noise limit was not seen as appropriate in this case.
The sound equipment was sophisticated and could adapt bass frequencies, but the
issues experienced on the tenth floor would need to be assessed before they could be
addressed.
Non-commercial events were subsidised by commercial events and the music
entertainment at this venue was not bass driven.

Adjournment and Decision
At 20:01, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the legal advisor and
clerk to deliberate in private.
The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations from Mr Simon Stewart.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need for any
decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to grant the time-limited premises
licence with the following additional conditions:



Where appropriate, the licence holder will liaise with local residents on the location of
monitoring stations and all such negotiations shall be conducted in good faith.
The capacity was reduced from 3000 to 2000, at the request of the applicant.

The reasons for granting the time-limited premises licence were as follows:






The Sub-Committee was mindful of Mr Stewart’s complaints and the detailed evidence
revealed a level of discomfort.
Due to this disturbance being concentrated in the upper floors of buildings meant the
location may have been more susceptible to noise disturbance and could be seen as a
matter of private nuisance rather than public nuisance.
The new condition encouraged an ongoing spirit of mediation in order to resolve ongoing
issues causing Mr Stewart distress.
While light in touch, if either party started to act in bad faith, there was ample ground for
the Sub-Committee to review the application in future.

RESOLVED: To grant the time-limited premises licence with the additional conditions as
detailed above.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to grant
the time-limited premises licence and provided reasons for the decision as outlined above. The
Sub-Committee had considered all the options available to them and ultimately felt that the
conditions met the concerns which had been raised. The Chair confirmed that written notification
of the decision would be sent in due course.

5

Consideration of Objections to Temporary Event Notices

Page 11

5a

65 - 67 Clapham High Street London SW4 7TG (Ferndale Ward)
This application was withdrawn.

5b

20 Brixton Road London SW9 6BU (Oval Ward)
Presentation by the Licensing Officer
The Sub-Committee was informed that this was an application for a. The Sub-Committee’s
attention was drawn to chapters 7, 9 and 15 of the Statutory Guidance, and to Sections 1, 3, 4,
5, 8, 13, 15 and 17 of the Statement of Licensing Policy, as the ones particularly relevant to this
application. The options available to the Sub-Committee were set out in paragraph 6 of the
report on page 15.
Mr Ola the Licensing Officer confirmed:







This was an application by the Council’s Public Protection Service for a counter-notice to
be issued against a Temporary Event Notice (TEN).
Mr John Ferreira submitted a TEN to the Licensing Authority on 12 April 2022 and was in
attendance.
The Notice would authorise the sale by retail of alcohol for consumption on the premises
and the provision of regulated entertainment and late-night refreshment to 200 persons
at the premises on 4 June 2022 from 18:00 to 01:00 and 5 June 2022 from 13:30 until
20:00.
Details of the TEN could be found on pages 9 to 14 of the report.
Mr Henry Umeh was in attendance representing Public Protection.

Presentation by the Applicant
Mr Henry Umeh, representing Public Protection, informed the Sub-Committee that:










While the venue had been used for a long time for social events, the first complaint of
noise nuisance was received in November the previous year.
Prior to investigating two noise disturbance at the venue, the music had stopped and
there were two further complaints following this incident.
Following a complaint from a local resident on the 27 November 2021, Public Protection
attended the venue at 00:45 and witnessed loud music.
The second visit took place on 4 December 2022 at 21:50 and Public Protection
witnessed a cultural event with loud music and ensured the sound level was reduced.
One further official complaint that the Council had not adequately dealt with an issue
that had been submitted by a local resident in January. An official response was issued,
and the resident assured that Public Protection was investigating and that adequate
notice was needed to investigate the noise disturbance in real time.
The local resident sent an email to the Leader of the Council at 18:45 on 2 April 2022
regarding noise reverberating around property, specifically in the bathroom and bedroom
and a recording had been attached as evidence.
Public Protection liaised with the Licensing Authority and a further discussion took place
with Scalabrini Fathers which uncovered that the club licence had lapsed and they were

Page 12




invited to apply or another licence.
Public Protection had been in receipt of approximately eight TENs applications at the
venue and this application had been submitted to negate the impact of noise nuisance
on the residents.
The venue owner was encouraged to submit a full premises licence application and it
was noted that further noise complaints could impact on this application.

In response to questions from Members, the applicant confirmed:






One complaint had been received from a resident who lived in the adjoining building,
which had been built recently.
Residents were aware of the responsive complaints service operated by Public
Protection.
TENs notices were not displayed outside the property as was not a requirement.
The club licence had expired in 2018 due to the death of the licence holder.
Constructive conversations had taken place with the owners at Scalabrini Fathers, while
the application of the full premises licence was in the control of their agent.

Presentation by Interested Parties
Mr John Ferreira said that:




This was a Portuguese cultural event, which had been at the venue since 2021.
The event involved a community dinner, entertainment artists from Portugal and the UK,
as well as folklore dancing.
The aim of the event was to raise funds for future events and the community, such as
sponsoring a local children’s football team.

In response to questions from Members, Mr John Ferreira confirmed that:










It was clarified that this group was separate to the others and the focus of this hearing
was the event in question, not the expired premises licence.
AJ Productions was responsible for the sound system and was able to control the sound
levels with a decibel reader.
The back and front door would always remain closed to prevent music travelling outside.
The applicant also looked to hang curtains in front and back to isolate the sound.
The music would be turned off at closing hour and patrons would be dispersed slowly in
groups of 15.
There would be one member of staff outside.
The event would have a mixture of recorded music, live performances and traditional
folklore music towards the end of the evening. There would be no DJs or club music.
This event was organised to celebrate Immigrant Day, a day that celebrated immigrants
from Portugal to the UK and around the world.
The community dinner was a ticketed event and customers were allocated seats.

Mr Henry Umeh, representing Public Protection, clarified that he did not have the information
available as to which group was responsible for noise disturbance at this venue at each date.
Adjournment and Decision

Page 13
At 20:42, the Sub-Committee withdrew from the meeting together with the legal advisor and
clerk to deliberate in private.
The Sub-Committee had heard and considered representations from Public Protection.
Legal advice was given to the Sub-Committee on the options open to them and the need for any
decision to be proportionate. The Sub-Committee decided to reject the application for a counter
application to the Temporary Event Notice.
The Chair informed the applicants that:





The Sub-Committee understood the strategic purpose of submitting a counter notice to
every Temporary Event Notice by Public Protection, but in this case, the applicant had
responded positively, and the Sub-Committee were assured that measures in place
upheld the Licensing Objectives.
Public Protection may have to continue bringing counter notices to each Temporary
Event Notice at this venue, to assess each event on its own merits.
The Licensing Authority would be contacted as well as the owners of the venue to reach
an agreement for a new premises licence.

RESOLVED: To grant the Temporary Event Notice and reject the counter notice.
Announcement of Decision
Members returned to the meeting and the Chair informed those present of the decision to reject
the application for a counter application to the Temporary Event Notice and provided reasons for
the decision as outlined above. The Sub-Committee had considered all the options available to
them and ultimately felt that the Notice giver met the concerns which had been raised. The
Chair confirmed that written notification of the decision would be sent in due course.

The meeting ended at 20:56
CHAIR
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
Friday 20 May 2022
Date of Despatch: Wednesday 18 May 2022
Contact for Enquiries: Julia Skinner
Tel: 020 7926 0147
E-mail: jskinner@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Page 15

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 13 JUNE 2022
Licensing Application for the Grant and Review of Premises Licence:
1. Getir Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood Road London SE24 0HG (Herne Hill)
2. Theatro 69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX Gipsy Hill)
Wards: Herne Hill and Gipsy Hill

Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety) Councillor Jacqui
Dyer
Report Authorised by: Bayo Dosunmu: Strategic Director of Resident Services
Contact for enquiries: Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection and Regulatory
Services, 020 7926 1649, Oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report sets out details of applications for the variation of a premises licence on which
representations have been submitted by interested parties.

RECOMMENDATION
That the application set out in the Appendix to this report be considered having regard to the Council's
Licensing Policy, the Licensing Objectives and the representation(s) received.

CONSULTATION
Name of
consultee
Selina Waife
and Jean-Marc
Moocarme

Directorate or
Organisation
Legal and
Governance

Date sent to
consultee

Date response
received from
consultee

Comments
appear in
report
(paragraph(s))

25.05.2022

26.05.2022

N/A

REPORT HISTORY
Authorised by
Executive Member

Date report drafted

Report deadline

Date report sent

25.05.2022

01.06.2022

31.05.2022

APPENDICES
1. Getir Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood Road London SE24 0HG (Herne Hill)
2. Theatro 69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX Gipsy Hill)

Page 16
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

A licence from the Council is required for the supply of alcohol, and regulated entertainment.

1.2

A person (including a business) may make an application for a new Premises Licence or a
variation to an existing Premises Licence. Where representations are received a Licensing SubCommittee must consider the application. The Sub-Committee, when considering such
applications, shall carry out its function under the Licensing Act 2003 with a view to the Council's
Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The Licensing Sub-Committee has responsibility for exercising the Council's powers in respect of
the Licensing Act 2003. Determination by the Committee of the applications appended to this
report is required because representation(s) to the application(s) have been received.

2.2

Details of the application(s) are set out in the Appendix to this report. All statutory consultation
requirements have been complied with by the applicant(s) as set out in paragraph 3 below. The
results of consultation are reported in the appendices relating to each application. Public notice
has been given in accordance with the requirements of the Licensing Act 2003.

2.3

The applicants and persons making representations have been invited to attend the meeting.

2.4

The fees for premises and personal licences are prescribed within the Licensing Act 2003; in the
case of Premises Licences, the fees are based on the business rate of the premises.

3.

CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS

3.1

The Licensing Act 2003 requires applicants for licences to consult and submit relevant
documentation to the Responsible Authorities as follows:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.
h.

Fire Authority;
Health & Safety Section;
Noise Service;
Police;
Social Services;
Home Office
Town Planning; and,
Trading Standards.

3.2

Applicants are also required to advertise the application by displaying public notices on or near the
premises and by advertising the application in a local newspaper available in the vicinity of
premises. An applicant’s’ failure to comply with all of the above consultation requirements would
invalidate the application. All applications set out in the appendix of this report have complied with
the consultation requirements.

4.
4.1

FINANCE

5.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Page 17
5.1

The licensing of premises for the supply of alcohol, regulated entertainment and late night
refreshment fall within the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003.

5.2

When considering licence applications the Sub-Committee shall carry out its function with a view to
the Council's Licensing Policy, Statutory Guidance and promoting the licensing objectives. The
Licensing Objectives are:
a.
b.
c.
d.

5.3

the prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;
the prevention of public nuisance; and,
the protection of children from harm.

The Sub-Committee must ensure that all licensing decisions have:
a.
b.
c.
d.

a direct relationship to the promotion of one or more of the 4 licensing objectives;
regard to the statement of licensing policy;
regard to the Secretary of State's Guidance; and,
there must not be a 'blanket policy' to the extent that it is applied so rigidly that an exercise of
discretion in each individual case is precluded.

Applications must be considered with regard to the principles of fair process and the Human Rights
Act.
5.4

The purpose of Lambeth’s Statement of Licensing Policy is to make clear to applicants and
relevant representatives the considerations that will be taken into account when determining
applications. It is also intended to guide the Licensing Committee when considering licensing
applications; however the Licensing Committee must consider each application on its own merit
and only allow exceptions to its own policy where the circumstances of the application justify it.

5.5

Subject to both the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy and Statutory Guidance having been
properly considered a Sub Committee may depart from them if there are good reasons for doing
so. Full reasons must be given and Sub Committees should be aware that such departures could
give rise to an appeal or judicial review.

5.6

The Statutory Guidance, Chapter 10, states that only necessary, proportionate conditions, which
promote one or more of the licensing objectives, should be attached to the licence if it is granted
(paragraph 10.11). The Licensing Authority may therefore only impose such conditions as are
necessary to promote the licensing objectives arising out of the consideration of the
representations (paragraph 10.11), and should avoid straying into undisputed areas (paragraph
9.24). Statutory Guidance also states that the pool of conditions that are supplied by the Secretary
of State should not be applied universally irrespective of particular circumstances, but may be used
as examples that can be tailored to suit individual premises and particular situations.

5.7

When considering an application for the variation of an existing licence only the variation is subject
to determination. No changes can be made to a licence or the conditions attached unless they are
subject to the variation application.

5.8

Members are advised that when considering applications to vary an existing licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part 3, Section 35, paragraphs 3
and 4.

Page 18
5.9

Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations – take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.
b.

modify the conditions of the licence (conditions are deemed to be modified if any are altered,
omitted or any new condition added); or,
reject the whole or part of the application

If neither of these steps are taken, the application must be granted.
5.10 Members are advised that when considering applications for a new Premises Licence the following
options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Chapter 17, Part 3, Section 18
paragraph 4.
5.11 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must – having regard to the
representations, take such steps (if any), as it considers necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives. The steps are:
a.

b.
c.
d.

to grant the licence subject to:
i.
the conditions mentioned in subsection (2)(a) modified to such extent as the authority
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
ii.
any condition which must under section 19, 20 or 21 be included in the licence;
to exclude from the scope of the license any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates;
to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; or,
to reject the application.

5.12 When determining an application for a review of a premises licence members may take any of the
following steps they consider necessary to promote the licensing objectives:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

to modify the conditions of the licence;
to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;
to remove the designated premises supervisor;
to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;
to revoke the licence; or,
to take no action.

5.13 It is considered inappropriate for officers involved in the administration of applications to make
recommendations. However officers from the Responsible Authorities may request conditions be
imposed on a licence and make recommendations with regard to the licensing objectives.
5.14 In accordance with the provisions of Part 1 of Schedule 5 of the Act, where a Licensing Authority
rejects an application for a new premises licence or refuses (in whole or in part) an application to
vary a premises licence the applicant may appeal the decision.
5.15 Where the Licensing Authority grants an application for a new premises licence the premises
licence holder can appeal any decision to impose conditions on the premises licence, to exclude a
licensable activity from the scope of the premises licence or to refuse to specify a named individual
as the Designated Premises Supervisor.
5.16 Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to an application contends: that the
licence should not have been granted; or that different or additional conditions should have been

Page 19
imposed on the licence; or that a licensable activity should have been excluded from the scope of
the premises licence; or that the licensing authority should have refused to specify a named
individual as the Designated Premises Supervisor, they may appeal the decision.
5.17 Appeals are to be made to a Magistrates’ Court within 21 days beginning with the date of
notification of the decision. Further details are set out in the Act.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 21

Agenda Item 4a

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 13 JUNE 2022
Item No: 4a
Report title: Getir Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood Road London
Applicant: Getir UK Limited
Application type: Premises Licence
Application date: 23 February 2022
Wards: Herne Hill
Premises Type: Online Delivery Service
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mr Ola Owojori, Licensing Officer, Public Protection, Assurance & Regulatory Services
0207 926 1649, oowojori@lambeth.gov.uk
APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application for a Premises Licence to allow authorisation for the sale of alcohol on Monday –
Sunday from 00:00 to 00:00 (24 Hours)
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and Appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the
policy)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:




The prevention of public nuisance
Public safety and
The protection of children from harm

Types of Premises and Recommended Hours (appendix 5, pages 46 to 47 and appendix 6, pages
48 to 50 of the policy)
The premises are proposing to operate as a delivery service of groceries & conveniences items including
alcohol. The area in which the premises are located, is an area generally deemed to be residential in
nature according to the Statement of Licensing Policy (the Policy), Appendix 7
The recommended hours within the policy for a premise of this kind in a residential area, is Monday to
Sunday from 11:00 to 23:00.
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants

Page 22
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.
The Policy refers to Delivery Services businesses at Policy 16 (erroneously marked as Policy 15),
paragraph 22 and further guidance is set out at paragraphs 3.8 – 3.10 and 10.50 of the s. 182 Revised
Guidance (2018).

Page 23
1.

APPLICATION

1.1

This is an application for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

1.2

The applicant is seeking authorisation for the sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises,
during the following times:
Monday - Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

1.3

The opening hours for the premises are proposed as:
Monday to Sunday 00:00 - 00:00

1.4

A copy of the application form, conditions and the plans are attached as Annex A.

2.

REPRESENTATION

2.1

Eight representations have been received against the application from the Licensing Authority, a
local Councillor and six residents, based on the licensing objectives of prevention of public
nuisance, public safety and protection of children from harm.

2.2

The representations highlight concerns in respect of the hours originally sought and the negative
impact of the premises in the area if granted, including an increase in air pollution, traffic flows,
parking pressure, noise nuisance and risk to public safety. Copies of the representations were
provided to the applicant and are attached to the report as Annex B.

2.3

The Licensing Authority has proposed what are considered to be appropriate conditions to address
the licensing objectives, which are yet to be agreed by the applicant. A list of these conditions is
attached to the report as Annex C.

2.4

The last date for making representations was on 23rd March 2022.

3.

CURRENT LICENCE

3.1

There is currently no premises licence in place for the premises.

4.

BACKGROUND HISTORY

4.1

The premises proposes to operate as a grocery store providing delivery services of food including
alcohol. The general public would not be admitted on to the premises to make purchases.

4.2

This is the fourth application from the applicant who has applied for licences in various locations
around the borough within the last 18 months. Two of the applications were granted under
delegated authority following agreement with interested parties and one was granted by the
Licensing Sub-Committee.

4.3

Four Temporary Event Notices have been submitted in respect of the premises in 2022 for
authorisation to permit sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises on the following dates:




22nd March - 26th March
29th March – 3rd April
5th April - 10th April

Page 24


12th April – 14th April

4.4

The Planning Authority didn’t make a formal representation in respect of the application. However,
they did provide the following comments, which have been sent to the applicant. “The use, as with
other Getir premises, appears to be a dark grocery operation. These are relatively new operations
and there is limited settled case law as to which use class they may fall in to. At this time the
council’s legal advice is that such operations are sui generis and would therefore need a specific
planning permission. The applicant should therefore be advised to ensure that they have the
correct permission in place prior to the commencement of operations at the premises. If they
consider that the proposed operation would fall within the permitted use of the industrial estate,
they should apply for a Certificate of Proposed Lawful Development.

5.

OBSERVATIONS

5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representation received are Chapters:
2)
3)
8)
9)
10)

5.2

The Licensing Objectives;
Licensable Activities
Applications for Premises Licenses;
Determining Applications; and,
Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates; and,

The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
Chapter 5 - The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 3 - Partnership working
Policy 4 - Enforcement approach
Policy 8 – Hours of sale and locations
Policy 16: Delivery Services (note. erroneously marked as Policy 15)
Appendix 2: Public Safety
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 4: Protection of Children from Harm
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 7: Major, District and Local Town Centres and South Bank Strategic Cultural Area
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing

6.

CONCLUSION
Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information, and if
approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a.

Grant the application as it currently stands;

Page 25
b.
c.
d.
e.

Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers necessary for the
promotion of the licensing objectives;
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the application
relates;
To refuse to specify the individual named in the applications as the DPS; or,
Reject the application.

Page 26
CONSULTATION INFORMATION

Department(s) or Organisation(s)
Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

Consulted
(Y/N)
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Date
Response
Received
16/03/2022
16/03/2022
-

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)
N
N
N
Y
Y
N
N
N
N

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices

Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation of
this report

Annex A – Application form, applicant’s conditions
and plans
Annex B – Representations
Annex C – List of Conditions
1. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
2. Amended Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the
Guidance”).
3. Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 2024 (“the Policy”).

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 27
Annex A

New Premises Licence

Premises Details
Getir UK Limited Unit 9, Bessemer Park 250 Milkwood Road
London SE24 0HG

Premises Address *

Telephone number at premises (if any)
Non-domestic value of premises. *

£ 32500

Applicant Details
I/We apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (the
premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 of the
Licensing Act 2003.
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence
as:

a person other than an individual -as a limited company/
limited liability partnership

Applicant Details
If you are applying as a person described in one of the above
please confirm: *

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which
involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or

1/7

Page 28

Ref: DSFX1645621459489

Other Applicant (Non Individual)
Name *

Getir UK Limited

Registered Address *

WeWork

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

SE1 9LQ

Registered Number (where applicable)
Description of applicant (for example partnership, company,
unincorporated association, etc) *

Private Limited Company

Telephone Number
Email *

Operating Schedule
When do you want the premises licence to start? *

24/03/2022

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period,
when do you want it to end?
Delivery service of groceries & conveniences items including
alcohol

Please give a general description of the premises. *
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend.

2/7

Page 29

Ref: DSFX1645621459489

Operating Schedule
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? * (Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act
2003 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2) *
Plays

Films

Indoor Sporting Events

Boxing or Wrestling

Live Music

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

Provision of late night refreshment

✓

Supply of Alcohol

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 7)*
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
00:00
00:00

3/7

Page 30

Ref: DSFX1645621459489

Supply of Alcohol
Will the supply of alcohol be for consumptionon premises or
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 8) *

Off the premises

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol.
(please read guidance note 5)

***PLEASE NOTE - THESE ARE OPERATIONAL HOURS
ONLY - THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE
PREMISES***

Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the supply of alcoholat different
times from the Standard days and times listed?(please read
guidance note 6)

***PLEASE NOTE - THESE ARE OPERATIONAL HOURS
ONLY - THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE
PREMISES***

Designated Premises Supervisor
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated premises supervisor
(Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of the form)
Title *

Miss

First name *

Sofia Angelova

Surname *

Koleva

Street address *

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

W10 6SY

Personal Licence Number (if known)
Issuing Licensing Authority (if known)

Wandsworth

Adult Entertainment
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services,
activities, other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use
of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read guidance note 9).

N/A

4/7

Page 31

Ref: DSFX1645621459489

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 7) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Every Day
00:00
00:00

Opening Hours

State any seasonal variations. (please read guidance note 5)

***PLEASE NOTE - THESE ARE OPERATIONAL HOURS
ONLY - THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE
PREMISES***

Please state any Non-standard timings, where you intend the
premises to be open to the public at different times from the
Standard days and times listed? (please read guidance note
6)

***PLEASE NOTE - THESE ARE OPERATIONAL HOURS
ONLY - THERE WILL BE NO PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE
PREMISES***

Licensing Objectives
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
(please read guidance note 10)

See List of Conditions attached

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

See List of Conditions attached

c) Public safety

See List of Conditions attached

d) The prevention of public nuisance

See List of Conditions attached

e) The protection of children from harm

See List of Conditions attached

Declarations
Declaration Type *

Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

5/7

Page 32

Ref: DSFX1645621459489

Declarations
I have uploaded a copy of the plan of the premises. I have uploaded a copy of the consent form completed by the individual
I wish to be designated premises supervisor, if applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand
that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected. Applicable to all individual applicants,
including those in partnership which is not a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships I
have included documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note 15)
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT' 'IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT
1971 FOR A PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT
WITHOUT LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY
UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND PURSUANT TO SECTION
21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH
REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED.
Signature/Declaration of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see Guidance Note 11 &amp; 12).
If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are authorised to sign/apply.
When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.

✓

I understand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or
if I am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity) and
that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).

✓

The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is not subject to conditions preventing him
or her from doing work relating to a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of entitlement to
work, if appropriate (please see note 15).

Full Name *

Chris Nixon - UK Compliance Manager, Getir UK Limited

Date *

23/02/2022

Capacity *

Applicant

✓

Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? *

Yes

6/7

Page 33

Ref: DSFX1645621459489

Alternative Correspondence
Please provide Contact Name and postal address for correspondence associated with this application.
Title

Mr

First name

Chris

Surname

Nixon

Street address *

Getir UK Limited

Town/City *

London

County
Postcode *

SE1 9LQ

Telephone Number
Email *

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Chris

Surname /Company Name

Nixon

Email *
Telephone

7/7

Page 34

Getir UK Limited Premises Licence Conditions
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
Consideration of the London Borough of Lambeth Council Licensing policy has been carried
out to ensure the promotion of the four licensing objectives with particular regard to core hours
policy
1.
No members of the public will be allowed on the premises

2.

Drivers will await deliveries by waiting in an internal section of the premises
until such time as a delivery is ordered. Staff on site will ensure that no
excessive noise is created by the drivers when leaving, entering or smoking
outside the Premises

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

3.

4.

5.
6.

A camera CCTV system is in place on the premises
The CCTV system shall continuously record whilst the premises is open for
licensable activities. All recordings will be stored for a minimum of 31 days
and can be accessed and downloaded immediately when requested by the
police or other authorised officer
There will always be at least one person present whilst the premises is
open who is able to operate and download images from the CCTV
An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on
request to the police or an authorised officer, which will record the following:
a)
Any complaints received
b)
Any faults in the CCTV system
c)
Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
d)
Any refusal of the sale of alcohol

c) Public safety

7.

8.

The premises will be maintained in a safe manner at all times
All exits will be kept unobstructed, easy to open and clearly signed

d) The prevention of public nuisance

9.
Notices will be displayed asking staff to leave the premises quietly and to
have respect for local residents
10.
Delivery of alcohol will be refused whereby the driver considers the person
receiving the delivery to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs
11.
No alcohol will be supplied to the public at the premises
12.
All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed
containers only and shall not be consumed on the premises
e) The protection of children from harm

8

Page 35

13.

When a delivery is to be carried out by an employed driver:
a) A Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated, whereby if supply of alcohol is to
any person who appears to be under the age of 25 years of age, they will
be required to produce on request an item which meets the mandatory age
verification requirement and is either a:
i.
Proof of age card bearing the PASS Hologram;
ii.
Photocard driving licence;
iii.
Passport; or
iv.
Ministry of Defence Identity Card
b) All staff engaged in the sale or supply of alcohol on the premises shall have
received training in relation to the protection of children from harm
(including under-age sales), how to recognise drunkenness and the duty
not to serve drunk persons. Refresher training shall be carried out at least
every twelve months.
c) Training records shall be kept on the premises (or otherwise be accessible
on the premises) for a minimum of 12 months and made immediately
available to police, trading standards or licensing authority staff upon
reasonable request
d) A refusals record shall be maintained at the premises which details all
refusals to supply alcohol. Each entry shall, as a minimum, record the date
and time of the refusal and the name of the staff member refusing the
supply
14.
Notwithstanding Conditions above; where third party couriers are employed
for deliveries these third parties shall maintain their own Challenge 25 Policies &
age verification training
15.
When using third party couriers, all consignments of alcohol will be
dispatched through reputable couriers only

9

Page 36

10

Page 37
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:
Attachments:

Bina Patel
Ola Owojori
Licenisng rep for: 22/00041/PRMNEW - Getir
16 March 2022 12:55:00
image001.jpg

Annex C

Dear Ola
As a responsible authority under section 13(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as amended under the
Police and Social Responsibility Act 2011, the Licensing Authority have considered your
application in full. The Licensing Authority has concerns in relation to this application and how the
premises would promote the Licensing Objectives
On reviewing the application, I ask for the applicants consideration to the following conditions to
uphold the objectives. The conditions also include those in red which have been lifted from your
application and remain as original or have been amended to a slightly alternative proposal.
1.

Each delivery containing alcohol shall be labelled with the words "Age Restricted Product" or similar

2.

A signature at the point of delivery must be obtained from a person above the age of 18 with appropriate
age verification identification. No delivery shall be left without a signature. In the exceptional circumstances
that a signature cannot be obtain, then the name and date of birth of the person receiving the delivery shall
be obtained.

3.

Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name, and address of the customer) must be
accessible to any Police Constable or Local Authority Officer inspecting the order. Details of customer orders
shall be retained for a period of 6 months.

4.

There shall be no deliveries to public/communal areas or open spaces.

5.

No members of the public will be allowed on the premises or be permitted to collect their order from the
premises.

6.

The premises will operate as a delivery only business.

7.

All delivery drivers shall await within the designated internal section of the premises for delivery orders.

8.

Staff on site shall ensure that no excessive noise is created by the drivers when, entering, leaving or smoking
outside the premises.

9.

Orders containing alcohol may only be delivered between the hours 08:00 – 23:00.

0. The premises shall maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit points must be covered enabling
frontal identification of every person entering in a light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record
whilst the premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date and
time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request of Police or
authorised officer of Lambeth Council
11. A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system must be able to
provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute
minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of the initial request
12. An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to an authorised officer of
Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed within 24 hours of the incident and retained for a period
of 12 months. The incident log shall record the following:
(a) All crimes reported to the premises
(b) Any complaints received
(c) Any incidents of disorder
(d) Any faults in the CCTV system
(e) Any refusal of alcohol deliveries, the name of the member of staff or third party who refused the
delivery

Page 38
(f)

Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service

13. The incident log shall be checked on a regular basis by the DPS to ensure that is being used by the staff and
each check shall be recorded in the log
14. Website and all promotional materials should be designed and set out in a way which is consistent with the
responsible retail of alcohol.
15. No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises shall take place between
22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.
16. All exits will be kept unobstructed, easy to open and clearly signed

7. Notices will be displayed asking staff to leave the premises quietly and to have respect for local residents
18. Delivery of alcohol will be refused whereby the driver considers the person receiving the delivery to be under
the influence of alcohol or drugs
19. All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers only and shall not be
consumed on the premises
20. A Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated, whereby if supply of alcohol is to any person who appears to be
under the age of 25 years of age, they will be required to produce on request an item which meets the mandatory
age verification requirement and is either a
a) Proof of age card bearing the PASS Hologram;

b. Photocard driving licence;
c. Passport; or
d. Ministry of Defence Identity Card
21. All staff engage in the sale or supply of alcohol shall be trained in the prevention of underage sales,
drunkenness and proxy sales before being allowed to sell or supply any alcohol. The training should be clearly
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the member of staff receiving it. The documentation
shall be available for inspection on request by an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable. .
Refresher training shall be carried out at least every twelve months.
22. Training records shall be kept on the premises (or otherwise be accessible on the premises) for a minimum of
12 months and made immediately available to police, trading standards or licensing authority staff upon
reasonable request
23. A refusals record shall be maintained at the premises which details all refusals to supply alcohol. Each entry
shall, as a minimum, record the date and time of the refusal and the name of the staff member refusing the
supply
24. Notwithstanding condition 20; where third party couriers are employed for deliveries these third parties shall
maintain their own Challenge 25 Policies & age verification training
25. In all instances when a delivery is made, the person supplying age restricted goods must exercise the
Challenge 25 Policy at the point of delivery. Where the recipient is believed to be under the age of 25, appropriate
age verification identification must be obtained from the recipient to prove they are above the age of 18

26. When using third party couriers, all consignments of alcohol will be dispatched through reputable couriers
only
27. The premises will be maintained in a safe manner at all times.
28. Drivers must be instructed to abort delivery where that sale is believed to be a "street sale". All such instances
will be recorded in the refusals/incidents log

Page 39

Should the applicant be minded to agree to the above conditions, the authority will withdraw its
representation
Regards
Miss Bina Patel
Licensing Manager
London Borough of Lambeth
Public Protection and Regulatory Services
Resident Services
Lambeth Council
3rd Floor Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London, SW2 1EG
Phone: 020 7926 4103
Mobile: 07548 148 102
Email: bpatel@lambeth.gov.uk
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/
Items by post should be sent to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Community Safety, PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Items for courier or hand delivery should be delivered to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Community Safety, Civic Centre, 6 Brixton Hill, LONDON, SW2 1EG

Public Access - for information on current licences and new applications please
use the following link http://planning.lambeth.gov.uk/online-applications/search.do?
action=simple&searchType=LicencingApplication
We are working with our partners to build a #BetterLambeth - find out more at
http://love.lambeth.gov.uk/better

Page 40
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Annie
Ola Owojori
Reference 22/00041/PRMNEW
22 March 2022 23:00:22

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

HI Ola,

Hope you well and can assist on a query that has been brought to our attention regarding application for a 24hours/7days
a week grocery and alcohol business at Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate, 250 Milkwood Road.
We understand that there has been an application for the above, but we have had little notice of this application or time to
review the proposal in detail.
As a resident of

Road, we would not be in favour of this proposal for the following high level reasons:

1. Air pollution – caused by increase in traffic to / from this site on a 24/7 basis, which
would be detrimental to the health of the children that attend both Jessops and Michael
Tippett Schools and the local residents on Milkwood Road.
2. Noise pollution – we already have issues with noise pollution from businesses working
outside of normal working hours and bouncing back to the road, and this would only make
the current issues worse, especially if this is a 24/7 delivery service.
3. Danger to the roads – increase of traffic to an already dangerous road (despite the bumps
put in, people still regularly speed along this road or overtake other cars at speed, to avoid
going over speed bumps). There have also been recent accidents along this road and this
needs to be addressed / monitored pre adding to the existing issue.
I would have liked to have had the time to review this proposal in more detail, but for now, please can you confirm that
you have received this email and clarification of what the next steps will be for the local residents in line with this
proposal?
Thanks in advance,
Annie

Page 41
From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

Benjamin
Ola Owojori
Reference 22/00041/PRMNEW
23 March 2022 09:46:13

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Ola,
I am writing in reference to the late notification of the application for a license of Unit 9 Bessemer Park
industrial estate, 250 Milkwood Road. We are residents of
Road, and we object to this based on
the following reasons:
1. Increased traffic/footfall on Milkwood Road - this is already a very congested road, and suffers from
speeding which represents an increased danger for residents/children at nearby schools.
2. Noise pollution - there will be an increase in noise pollution due to the delivery drivers collecting
groceries/alcohol 24hrs a day, and 7 days a week. Milkwood road already suffers from such noise pollution due
to the industrial estate, so we are very keen not to add to this.
3. Parking on Milkwood Road - as a resident parking permit holder for Milkwood road, I find it increasingly
difficult to park close to my house due to all the spaces being full from staff who work in the business park.
Adding another business will only worsen this issue.
Many thanks for considering these objections.
Benjamin
Sent from my iPhone

Page 42

Comments for Licensing Application 22/00041/PRMNEW
Application Summary
Application Number: 22/00041/PRMNEW
Address: Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood Road London LONDON SE24
0HG
Proposal: Premises Licence (new application)
Case Officer: Mr Ola Owojori
Customer Details
Name: Ms Ciara
Address:

Road, London SE24

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour/Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Comment Reasons:
- Objection to application
Comment:23/03/2022 9:35 PM I object to the licence application operating 24 hours. Milkwood
Road is a densely residential road with the light industrial estate properties in a minority. The
neighbourhood profile is mainly long-term families with children in education. Given the existing
housing pressures in the locality the Council should prioritise protecting liveable residential streets.
The business model of the applicant heavily advertises delivery within ten minutes and rewarding
staff for speed. This is a potential road safety risk as well as a trigger for nuisance from amplified
operating/traffic noise (including lorry deliveries for warehouse restock). Supplying alcohol after
regular licencing hours will without doubt increase demand thereby increase traffic and noise
activity. The street at night is already suffering repercussions from Railton Road traffic restrictions.
This additional traffic noise was amplified last summer when window ventilation was required.
Permitting a 24 hr 7 day a week night time licence will only increase the noise/traffic volumes
above tolerance and create a precedent to encourage similar applications from the neighbouring
industrial units .There are 2 schools on Milkwood Road and safety of child pedestrians with
additional courier bike traffic from Getir (Bessemer site) and Gorillas (Stone Trading Estate site)
needs urgent review.

Page 43

Page 44

Comments for Licensing Application 22/00041/PRMNEW
Application Summary
Application Number: 22/00041/PRMNEW
Address: Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood Road London LONDON SE24
0HG
Proposal: Premises Licence (new application)
Case Officer: Mr Ola Owojori
Customer Details
Name: Jim
Address:

, London, LONDON SE24

Comment Details
Commenter Type: MP/Councillor
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Comment Reasons:
- Objection to application
Comment:22/03/2022 8:31 PM Although Milkwood Road has some light industrial premises, it
remains a predominantly residential street and increased usage during the night will impact on
residents' right to a reasonable night's sleep, and their children's right to sleep soundly. The
granting of licence will inevitable lead to increased delivery driver activity during the late hours as
this is the main time when people will be ordering the delivery of alcohol.
I would urge the council to reject this application.

Page 45

Comments for Licensing Application 22/00041/PRMNEW
Application Summary
Application Number: 22/00041/PRMNEW
Address: Unit 9 Bessemer Park Industrial Estate 250 Milkwood Road London LONDON SE24
0HG
Proposal: Premises Licence (new application)
Case Officer: Mr Ola Owojori
Customer Details
Name: Mr John
Address:

Road, London, LONDON SE24

Comment Details
Commenter Type: Neighbour/Public
Stance: Customer objects to the Licensing Application
Comment Reasons:
- Objection to application
Comment:22/03/2022 9:58 PM I live opposite the entrance to the Bessemer Park Trading Estate
and am deeply concerned about the impact on the residents of Milkwood Road in terms of noise,
pollution and increased traffic.
Milkwood Community Park, and Jessop Primary School - which my children attend - are very close
by, and this will mean yet more vehicles and pollution which will directly affect them on their
journeys to and from school and when they have to cross the road.
Milkwood Park already has an issue with speeding, and the Bessemer Park Trading Estate has
been the source of noise, with complaints already lodged against existing tenants.
We were also given no prior notice of this application.

Page 46

Page 47
collecting groceries. From windows of opposite residential properties, we can hear noise and even
voices of the staff and drivers.
Regards

Page 48

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51

Annex C
Conditions proposed by the applicant with alternatives suggested by the Licensing Authority
in italics
1.

No members of the public will be allowed on the premises

2.

Drivers will await deliveries by waiting in an internal section of the premises
until such time as a delivery is ordered. Staff on site will ensure that no
excessive noise is created by the drivers when leaving, entering or smoking
outside the Premises
All delivery drivers shall wait within the designated internal section of the
premises for delivery orders.

3.

A camera CCTV system is in place on the premises

4.

The CCTV system shall continuously record whilst the premises is open for
licensable activities. All recordings will be stored for a minimum of 31 days
and can be accessed and downloaded immediately when requested by the
police or other authorised officer

5.

There will always be at least one person present whilst the premises is open who is
able to operate and download images from the CCTV
The premises shall maintain a comprehensive CCTV system. All entry and exit
points must be covered enabling frontal identification of every person entering
in a light condition. The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the
premises are open. All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31
days with date and time stamping. Viewing of recordings shall be made
available immediately upon the request of Police or authorised officer of
Lambeth Council
A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the
CCTV system must be able to provide a Police or authorised council officer
copies of recent CCTV images or data with the absolute minimum of delay
when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of the initial request

6.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises, and made available on
request to the police or an authorised officer, which will record the following:
a) Any complaints received
b) Any faults in the CCTV system
c) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
d) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol
An incident log shall be kept at the premises and made available on request to
an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the Police. It must be completed
within 24 hours of the incident and retained for a period of 12 months. The
incident log shall record the following:
(a) All crimes reported to the premises
(b) Any complaints received
(c) Any incidents of disorder
(d) Any faults in the CCTV system
(e) Any refusal of alcohol deliveries, the name of the member of staff or third
party who refused the delivery

Page 52

(f) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service
7.

The premises will be maintained in a safe manner at all times

8.

All exits will be kept unobstructed, easy to open and clearly signed

9.

Notices will be displayed asking staff to leave the premises quietly and to
have respect for local residents
Notices will be displayed asking staff to leave the premises quietly and to have
respect for local residents

10.

Delivery of alcohol will be refused whereby the driver considers the person
receiving the delivery to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs
Delivery of alcohol will be refused whereby the driver considers the person
receiving the delivery to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs

11.

No alcohol will be supplied to the public at the premises
No members of the public will be allowed on the premises or be permitted to
collect their order from the premises.

12.

All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed containers
only and shall not be consumed on the premises
All sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be in sealed
containers only and shall not be consumed on the premises

13.

When a delivery is to be carried out by an employed driver:

a)

A Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated, whereby if supply of alcohol is to
any person who appears to be under the age of 25 years of age, they will
be required to produce on request an item which meets the mandatory age
verification requirement and is either a:
i. Proof of age card bearing the PASS Hologram;
ii. Photocard driving licence;
iii. Passport; or
iv. Ministry of Defence Identity Card
A Challenge 25 scheme shall be operated, whereby if supply of alcohol is to
any person who appears to be under the age of 25 years of age, they will be
required to produce on request an item which meets the mandatory age
verification requirement and is either a
a) Proof of age card bearing the PASS Hologram;
b. Photocard driving licence;
c. Passport; or
d. Ministry of Defence Identity Card

b)

All staff engaged in the sale or supply of alcohol on the premises shall have
received training in relation to the protection of children from harm
(including under-age sales), how to recognise drunkenness and the duty
not to serve drunk persons. Refresher training shall be carried out at least
every twelve months.

Page 53

All staff engage in the sale or supply of alcohol shall be trained in the
prevention of underage sales, drunkenness and proxy sales before being
allowed to sell or supply any alcohol. The training should be clearly
documented and signed and dated by both the trainer and the member of staff
receiving it. The documentation shall be available for inspection on request by
an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable. Refresher
training shall be carried out at least every twelve months.
c)

Training records shall be kept on the premises (or otherwise be accessible
on the premises) for a minimum of 12 months and made immediately
available to police, trading standards or licensing authority staff upon
reasonable request
Training records shall be kept on the premises (or otherwise be accessible on
the premises) for a minimum of 12 months and made immediately available to
police, trading standards or licensing authority staff upon reasonable request

d)

A refusals record shall be maintained at the premises which details all
refusals to supply alcohol. Each entry shall, as a minimum, record the date
and time of the refusal and the name of the staff member refusing the supply
A refusals record shall be maintained at the premises which details all refusals
to supply alcohol. Each entry shall, as a minimum, record the date and time of
the refusal and the name of the staff member refusing the supply

14.

Notwithstanding Conditions above; where third party couriers are employed
for deliveries these third parties shall maintain their own Challenge 25 Policies & age
verification training

15.

When using third party couriers, all consignments of alcohol will be dispatched
through reputable couriers only

Conditions proposed by the Licensing Authority
16.

Each delivery containing alcohol shall be labelled with the words "Age Restricted
Product" or similar

17.

A signature at the point of delivery must be obtained from a person above the age of
18 with appropriate age verification identification. No delivery shall be left without a
signature. In the exceptional circumstances that a signature cannot be obtain, then
the name and date of birth of the person receiving the delivery shall be obtained.

18.

Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name, and address of the
customer) must be accessible to any Police Constable or Local Authority Officer
inspecting the order. Details of customer orders shall be retained for a period of 6
months.

19.

There shall be no deliveries to public/communal areas or open spaces.

20.

The premises will operate as a delivery only business.

21.

Orders containing alcohol may only be delivered between the hours 08:00 – 23:00.

22.

The incident log shall be checked on a regular basis by the DPS to ensure that is
being used by the staff and each check shall be recorded in the log

Page 54

23.

Website and all promotional materials should be designed and set out in a way which
is consistent with the responsible retail of alcohol.

24.

No collections of waste or recycling materials (including bottles) from the premises
shall take place between 22:00 hours and 08:00 hours on the following day.

25.

Notwithstanding condition 20; where third party couriers are employed for deliveries
these third parties shall maintain their own Challenge 25 Policies & age verification
training

26.

In all instances when a delivery is made, the person supplying age restricted goods
must exercise the Challenge 25 Policy at the point of delivery. Where the recipient is
believed to be under the age of 25, appropriate age verification identification must be
obtained from the recipient to prove they are above the age of 18

27.

When using third party couriers, all consignments of alcohol will be dispatched
through reputable couriers only

28.

Drivers must be instructed to abort delivery where that sale is believed to be a "street
sale". All such instance will be recorded in the refusals/incidents log

Page 55

Agenda Item 4b

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 13 JUNE 2022
Item No: 4b
Report title: Theatro, 69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX
Applicant: The Music Box Enterprises Ltd
Application type: Premises licence (variation)
Application date: 26 March 2022
Wards: Gipsy Hill
Premises type: Restaurant and Bar
Policy Context: Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 - 2024
Report author: Mrs Pamela Riley, Licensing Officer, 0207 926 6164 priley@lambeth.gov.uk
APPLICATION SUMMARY
This is an application to vary the premises licence to extend the provision of regulated entertainment into
the courtyard at the rear of the property and for the removal of condition 23 from the current premises
licence.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS
Licensing Objectives (chapter 5, pages 9 to 15 and Appendices 1 to 4, pages 41 to 45 of the
policy)
The Licensing Objectives engaged by this application are:





Prevention of Public Nuisance;
Protection of Children from Harm;
Public Safety; and,
Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

Hours of sale and Location (Policy 8, pages 27 to 28 & Appendix 5, pages 46 to 47)
The premises operates as a restaurant and bar providing regulated entertainment with alcohol which is
sold for consumption on and off the premises. The premises is located on the corner of Westow Hill and
Jasper Road which according to the current Licensing Policy, Appendix 7 is an area generally deemed to
be residential in nature.
A premises of this kind in a residential area, the Licensing Policy’s recommended commencement hour
for licensable activities is 11:00 and the terminal hour of 23:00 Monday to Sunday.

Page 56
Note: The hours above are not absolute and are intended as a guide for applicants to consider when
completing their operating schedules. Each application will be considered on its own merits. Applicants
seeking hours later than those indicated in the Policy should provide detailed evidence as to why their
application will not have a negative impact on the licensing objectives.

Page 57
1. APPLICATION
1.1 This is an application to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003.
1.2 The applicant is seeking to vary the premises licence as follows:
a) Increase the licensed area, so as to integrate the courtyard leading out of the lower ground
floor at the rear of the property on the current premises licence;
b) Extend the commencement hour for Recorded Music Monday to Sunday from 11:00 to 10:00,
inside the premises;
c) To permit Recorded Music within the courtyard area from 11:00 to 21:00 Monday to Sunday;
and
d) To remove condition 23 of the current premises licence which states: “All windows and
external doors shall be kept closed after 21:00 hours, or at any time when the regulated
entertainment takes place, except for immediate access and egress to persons”.
1.3 The current licence authorises the following licensable activity and opening hours:
Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance, Entertainment of Similar to Music and
Dance and Sale by Retail of Alcohol.
Sunday to Thursday
11:00 – 00:00
Friday & Saturday
11:00 – 01:00
Late Night Refreshment
Sunday to Thursday
Friday & Saturday

23:00 - 00:00
23:00 – 01:00

Non-Standard Timings:
Sunday prior to bank holidays

11:00 – 01:00

A copy of the application form is attached to this report as Annex A.
A copy of the current premises licence is attached to this report as Annex B.

2. REPRESENTATIONS
2.1 One representation was received against the application from Public Protection on the ground of
the prevention of public nuisance. The representation highlights concern with the request to
remove condition 23 from the licence, stating that the removal of the condition may impact the
peaceful and normal enjoyment of the residential premises adjoining the courtyard and the area
in general.
2.2 The last date for accepting representations was on 29th April 2022.
2.3 A copy of the representation was provided to the applicant. In response to the concerns raised by
public protection, the licensee has offered to withdraw Live Music from the premises licence.
2.4 A copy of the representation and response from the applicant are attached to this report at
Annex C.

3. CURRENT LICENCE
3.1 The current premises licence was granted on 20th August 2021 and the Designated Premises
Supervisor (DPS) is Roya Harris.

Page 58
4. BACKGROUND HISTORY
4.1 The premises operates as a restaurant and bar serving Asian Fusion Tapas and hires out of work
musical actors who serve and sing along with a live band and entertain guests. The premises is
set over two floors - ground floor and lower ground floor. The lower ground floor has a small
adjoining courtyard which is a sit-down area for food and drink. The premises also offer deliveries
of food and beverages via online delivery companies such as Deliveroo, Uber Eats etc.
4.2 There has been no TEN’s applications received in the past 12 months for this premises

5. OBSERVATIONS
5.1

The parts of the Statutory Guidance (April 2018) which are particularly relevant to this application
and the representations received are Chapters:
2)
3)
8)
9)
10)

The Licensing Objectives;
Licensable Activities
Applications for Premises Licenses;
Determining Applications; and,
Conditions Attached to Premises Licenses and Club Premises Certificates

5.2 The parts of the Statement of Licensing Policy that are particularly relevant to this application and
the representations are Sections:
Chapter 5 - The Licensing Objectives
Policy 1 - Process for applications
Policy 3 - Partnership working
Policy 4 - Enforcement approach
Policy 5 – Outside spaces
Policy 8 – Hours of sale and locations
Policy 17 – Dispersal and entry (note, erroneously marked as Policy 16)
Appendix 1: Prevention of Crime and Disorder
Appendix 2: Public Safety
Appendix 3: Prevention of Public Nuisance
Appendix 4: Protection of Children from Harm
Appendix 5: Types of premises and recommended hours
Appendix 6: Types of premises and potential impact
Appendix 8: What to expect from a Licensing Sub-Committee Hearing
6. CONCLUSION
6.1 Members are required to consider the application in light of all the relevant information, and if
approval is given, may attach such conditions appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.
The options available to Members of the Licensing Sub Committee are:
a) Grant the application as it currently stands;
b) Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives or,

Page 59
c) Reject the application.

Page 60
CONSULTATION INFORMATION

Department(s) or Organisation(s)
Health & Safety Section (internal)
Noise service (internal)
Social Services (internal)
Licensing Service (internal)
Planning (internal)
Trading Standards (internal)
Fire Authority (external)
Police Licensing Unit (external)
Health Authority (external)

Consulted
(Y/N)
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Date
Response
Received
26/04/22
-

Comments
summarized in
report (Y/N)
Y

APPENDICES AND REFERENCE DOCUMENTS

Appendices

Reference documents
Local Government Act 1972 – Access to
information documents used in the preparation of
this report

Annex A – Application form
Annex B – Current Premises Licence
Annex C – Representation and applicants
response
Annex D – Applicant proposed conditions
1. The Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”).
2. Amended Guidance issued under Section 182
of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) (“the
Guidance”).
3. Lambeth Statement of Licensing Policy 2019 2024 (“the Policy”).

Lambeth Council
Lambeth Council, P.O. Box 734, Winchester, S023 5DG
T: 020 7926 1000
E: infoservice@lambeth.gov.uk

Page 61
Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Vary a Premises Licence

Review
Please review the details to below to ensure they are correct before proceeding. If the details shown are not correct, click
previous to enter the correct licence number.
Current Licence number

21/00150/PRMNEW

Current Premises address

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Premises Details
Premises Licence Number *

21/00150/PRMNEW

Premises Address *

69-71 Westow Hill London SE19 1TX

Telephone Number at Premises (if any)
Non-domestic rateable value of premises. *

£ 36750

Type of Premises Licence Holder
Type of Premises Licence Holder *

Individual(s)

1

Page 62

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Premises Licence Holder - Individual
I/We being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described.
Title*

Mrs

First name*

Roya

Surname*

Harris

Street address*
London

I

Town/City*
County

London

Postcode*
Daytime Contact Telephone Number
Email*

Variation

I

Do you want the proposed variation to take effect as soon as
es
possible?*
�Y_ _ __________________�

2

Page 63

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Variation
Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation
to the introduction of the late night levy? (Please see
Guidance Note 1)*

No

Briefly describe the nature of the proposed variation. (Please
see Guidance Note 2) *

To integrate the courtyard leading out of the lower ground
floor at the rear of the property into the current licence for the
property. However, the courtyard will only operate during the
hours of 1100hrs-2100hrs Monday- Sunday. Also, to remove
the condition of having windows and doors closed during
times of when licensable activities take place.

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more
people are expected to attend the premises at any one time,
please state the number.

3

Page 64

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Operating Schedule
Complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if this application to vary is
successful.
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 3) *
Plays

Films

Indoor Sporting Events

Boxing or Wrestling

Live Music

✓

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Anything of a similar description falling under Music or Dance

Provision of late night refreshment

✓

Supply of Alcohol

Type of Variation - Recorded Music
Please select the type of variation that applies to this activity.
*

4

Add a new Activity

Page 65

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Recorded Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read
guidance note 8) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Week Days
10:00
00:00

Recorded Music Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the performance of recorded music. (please read
guidance note 8) * Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Weekends
10:00
01:00

Recorded Music
Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or
outdoors or both? (please read guidance note 4) *

Both

Please provide further details (please read guidance note 5)

Our current license permits us to play music indoors MondaySundays inside during our current license operating hours.
We would like to open an hour earlier (1000hrs) in the
mornings to serve coffee and food. We would also like to
play recorded music Monday-Sunday in the courtyard from
1100-2100hrs.

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded
music (please read guidance note 6)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the performance of recorded music
at different times from the Standard days and times listed?
(please read guidance note 7)

Type of Variation - Supply of Alcohol
Please select the type of variation that applies to this activity.
*

5

Add a new Activity

Page 66

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 8) *
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Week Days
11:00
00:00

Supply of Alcohol Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol. (please read guidance note 8) *
Please enter times in 24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Weekends
11:00
01:00

Supply of Alcohol
Will the supply of alcohol be for consumption on premises or
off premises or both? (please read guidance note 9) *

Both

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol.
(please read guidance note 6)
Please state any non-standard timings, where you intend
to use the premises for the supply of alcohol at different
times from the Standard days and times listed? (please read
guidance note 7)

6

Page 67

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 8) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Week Days
10:00
00:00

Opening Hours Standard Times
Standard days and timings, where the premises are open to the public. (please read guidance note 8) * Please enter times in
24hr format (HH:MM)
Day *

Weekends
10:00
01:00

Variation
Please identify those conditions currently imposed on
the licence which you believe could be removed as a
consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking.

Opening of the rear courtyard and opening of doors and
windows of the venue during times of when licensable
activities are taking place.

I agree to return the original premises licence or the relevant
part of the original premises licence: *

Yes

Note: This application cannot be processed until the original licence is received or a statement as to why it cannot be returned
has been accepted.

7

Page 68

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Licensing Objectives
Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a result of the proposed variation:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e)
(please read guidance note 11)

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Trained members of staff will be in place to prevent crime
and disorder. CCTV is already in place in the basement. Any
customers displaying any form of antisocial behaviour shall
be asked to leave.

c) Public safety

The courtyard shall be used as a dining area, layout will be
considered to keep the occupancy to 30 for the courtyard.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

In the courtyard a strict closing time of 9 o'clock shall be put
in place. Occupancy for courtyard shall be for 30 people
(60 in total for the basement) and will be an overflow of the
indoor dining area,

e) The protection of children from harm

Children will only be permitted when accompanied with an
adult in the courtyard

Declarations
Declaration Type *

Sole Applicant - Individual or Other

8

Page 69

Ref: DSFX1648816926815

Declarations
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee or. I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application
has been made in relation to the introduction of the late night levy. I have sent copies of this application and the plan to
responsible authorities and others where applicable. I understand I must now advertise my application. I understand I must
now return the original premises licence, or relevant part of it or have provided an explanation why I will not be able to do this.
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected.
IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT
Signature/Declaration of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(see Guidance Note 13). If signing/applying on behalf of the applicant, please state your name and in what capacity you are
authorised to sign/apply. When submitting an on-line application form the 'Declaration made' checkbox must be selected.
Full Name *

Roya Harris

Date *

01/04/2022

Capacity *

Applicant

✓

Declaration made

Do you wish to provide alternative correspondence details? *

No

Email confirmation
On submission an email confirmation will be sent using the details below
Forename

Roya

Surname /Company Name

Harris

Email *
Telephone

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 71
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2490

21/00150/PRMNEW

Part 1 – Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey
map reference or description
Theatro
69-71 Westow Hill
London
SE19 1TX
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Live Music (indoors only)
Recorded Music (indoors only)
Performances of Dance (indoors only)
Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance (indoors only)
Late Night Refreshment (indoors and outdoors)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (indoors and outdoors)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Live Music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Recorded Music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Performances of Dance
Friday to Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Premises Licence

A-1

Page 72

Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Late Night Refreshment
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

23:00 - 01:00
23:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday
Thursday to Saturday
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday Monday

11:00 - 00:30
11:00 - 01:30
11:00 - 01:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol for the consumption both on and off the premises

Premises Licence

A-2

Page 73

Page 74
Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions
1

MANDATORY CONDITIONS (Alcohol - on)
Condition A1.
No supply of Alcohol may be made under the Premises Licence:
(a)
(b)

At a time when there is no Designated Premises Supervisor in respect of the Premises
Licence; or
At a time when the Designated Premises Supervisor does not hold a Personal Licence or his
Personal Licence is suspended.

Condition A2
Every supply of alcohol under the Premises Licence must be made, or authorised by a person who
holds a Personal Licence.
Condition A3
(1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry
out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities,
or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of
alcohol for consumption on the premises—
(a)
games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold
or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise)
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or
less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;
(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or
in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone,
encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of
drunkenness in any favourable manner;
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of
disability).
Condition A4
The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers
where it is reasonably available.

Premises Licence

A-4

Page 75
Condition A5
(1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.
(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the
supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.
(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years
of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being
served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and
either—
(a)
a holographic mark, or
(b)
an ultraviolet feature.
Condition A6
The responsible person must ensure that—
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures—
(i) beer or cider: ½ pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;
(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and
(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.
Additional Mandatory Licensing Conditions, Minimum Drinks Pricing:
1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the
premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
(a) "duty" is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b) "permitted" price is the price found by applying the formula - P=D+(DxV) where:
(i) P is the permitted price,
(ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the
date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax
were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c)
"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;
(d)"relevant person" means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which
enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e)"value added tax" means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act
1994.
Premises Licence

A-5

Page 76
3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken
to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2
on a day ("the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the next day ("the second
day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol
which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

Premises Licence

A-6

Page 77
Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule
N/A

Premises Licence

A-7

Page 78
Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority
1.

Locations of fire safety and other safety equipment subject to change in accordance with
the requirements of the responsible authorities or following a risk assessment.

2.

Any detail shown on the plan that is not required by the licensing plans regulations is
indicative only and subject to change at any time.

3.

All staff members engaged, or to be engaged, in selling alcohol on the premises shall
receive full training pertinent to the Licensing Act, specifically in regard to age-restricted
sales, and the refusal of sales to persons believed to be under the influence of alcohol or
drugs. This

4.

All such training is to be fully documented and signed by not only the employee but the
person delivering the training. Training records shall be kept at the premises and made
available upon request to either Police Officers or an authorised officer of Lambeth Council.

5.

Waiter or waitress service will be available throughout the premises

6.

Customers shall not be allowed to bring their own alcohol for consumption on the premises.

7.

A direct telephone number (mobile to be held by duty manager) will be provided to
neighbouring premises to be used in the event of a complaint of noise nuisance.

8.

The premises shall install and maintain a comprehensive CCTV system.
(a)

All entry and exit points must be covered enabling frontal identification of
every person entering in a light condition

(b)

The CCTV system shall continually record whilst the premises are open

(c)

All recordings shall be stored for a minimum period of 31 days with date
and time stamping

(d)

Viewing of recordings shall be made available immediately upon the request
of Police or authorised officer of Lambeth Council.

9.

A staff member from the premises who is conversant with the operation of the CCTV system
shall be in the premises at all times when the premises is open. This staff member must be
able to provide a Police or authorised council officer copies of recent CCTV images or data
with the absolute minimum of delay when requested and within a maximum of 24 hours of
the initial request.

10.

Subject to Data Protection guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will
ensure that key staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to
download selected footage onto a disk/USB Stick for the Police or authorised officers of the
Local Authority without difficulty, delay or charge.

11.

Any CCTV breakdown or system failure will be notified to the Police and Local Authority
immediately & remedied as soon as practicable. Repair records / invoices shall be kept on
site for at least 12 months and be readily available to be viewed by all authorised persons
upon request.

Premises Licence

A-8

Page 79
12.

An incident log shall be kept at the premises and retained for a period of 12 months and
made available on request to an authorised officer of Lambeth Council or the Police. It must
be completed within 24 hours of the incident and will record the following:
(a)

all crimes reported to the venue

(b)

all ejections of patrons

(c)

any complaints received

(d)

any incidents of disorder

(e)

any faults in the CCTV system

(f)

any refusal of the sale of alcohol and the name of the member of staff who
refused the sale

(g) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.
13.

On occasions when the premises are providing licensable activities beyond 0000, the
deployment of door staff will be on a risk assessed basis.

14.

Where door staff are provided the following conditions will apply:
(a)
All SIA staff must sign a register detailing the information stated below. This register
must be kept available immediately upon the request of the police of an authorised
officer of Lambeth Council:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Start and end of shift times
SIA badge registered number
Full Names

15.

Only a security provider who has been awarded Approved Contractor Status by the Security
Industry Authority be authorised to deploy door supervisors or manned guard positions.

16.

Off sales of alcohol shall be limited to the delivery of alcohol ordered as part of a meal to be
delivered to a customer's home address and ancillary to that meal.

17.

Any person entering the premises who appears to be under the influence of alcohol or drugs
shall in the interests of other members of the public using the premises be requested to
leave the premises.

18.

The Premises will operate an anti-theft policy, which will include the reporting of theft, safe
storage of found items, storage and disposal procedures for all items of property found or
discarded at the premises. Signage will be on display in prominent places advising
customers to safeguard their property.

19.

The means of escape provided for the premises shall be maintained unobstructed, free of
trip hazards, be immediately available and clearly identified in accordance with the plans
provided.

20.

Adequate and appropriate first aid equipment and materials will be kept on site, regularly
checked and kept in an easily accessible place for staff.

21.

The edges of the treads of steps and stairways shall be maintained so as to be conspicuous.

22.

Staff must ensure that all empty glasses and bottles are promptly cleared away from the
public areas.

Premises Licence

A-9

Page 80

23.

All windows and external doors shall be kept closed after 2100 hours, or at any time when
regulated entertainment takes place, except for immediate access and egress to persons

24.

Save for customers who wish to temporarily leave the premises for the purposes of smoking
there shall be no entry/re-entry after 2300

25.

After 22:00 patrons temporarily leaving the premises to smoke shall be limited to no more
than 6 at any one time at the front of the premises.

26.

Patrons temporarily leaving the premises e.g. to smoke, shall not be permitted to take
drinks or with them

27.

No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the
structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance.

28.

A noise limiter must be fitted to the musical amplification system set at a level determined
by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of Public Protection, so as to ensure that
no noise nuisance is caused to local residents or businesses. The operational panel of the
noise limiter shall then be secured by key or password to the satisfaction of officers from
Public Protection and access shall only be by persons authorised by the Premises Licence
holder. The limiter shall not be altered without prior agreement with Public Protection. No
alteration or modification to any existing sound system(s) should be effected without prior
knowledge of an authorised Officer of Public Protection. No additional sound generating
equipment shall be used on the premises without being routed through the sound limiter
device.

29.

Should any queue form of persons waiting to gain entry to the premises, such queue shall
be properly organised and monitored so as to mitigate any impact on the public highway.

30.

No rubbish including bottles will be moved, removed or placed in outside areas between
00:00 hours and 08:00 hours.

31.

A written dispersal policy shall be in place and implemented at the premises to move
customers from the premises and the immediate vicinity in an orderly fashion.

32.

A copy of the dispersal policy shall be kept on the premises and made available to the police
and responsible authorities on request.

33.

The premises licence holder will provide training for all staff to ensure that they are familiar
with the dispersal policy

34.

Patrons shall be requested not to loiter outside the premises and to leave the premises
quietly. Notices to this effect must be prominently displayed at the entrances of the
premises.

35.

Management/staff shall proactively monitor the conduct and behaviour of patrons on the
public highway to ensure no noisy, rowdy or anti-social behaviour (this includes loud
talking/shouting and people congregating in large groups on pavement obstructing the
public highway). Those patrons deemed to be engaging in such behaviour shall be asked to
cease this activity and/or disperse from the premises quietly

36.

The highway and public spaces in the vicinity of the premises are kept free of litter from the
premises at all material times to the satisfaction of the Council.

Premises Licence

A - 10

Page 81
37.

A Challenge 25 proof of age scheme shall be operated at the premises where the only
acceptable forms of identification are recognised photographic identification cards, such as a
driving licence, passport or proof of age card with the PASS Hologram.

38.

Signage advertising the aforementioned proof of age scheme shall be prominently displayed
throughout the premises with a particular emphasis on the alcohol display area and service
area.

39.

That a refusals register is maintained recording when sales of alcohol are refused and the
reason why.

40.

All delivery orders of alcohol shall be to a registered residential or business address. There
shall be no deliveries of alcohol to public/communal areas or open spaces.

41.

Vehicles used for delivery should not be left idle outside the premises to ensure residents in
the locality are not disturbed.

42.

For all orders taken over the phone or via the internet, customers should be informed of
Challenge 25 and the requirement to have ID ready for inspection should the need arise
before receipt of alcoholic beverages.

43.

The Premises Licence Holder shall ensure all persons associated with the handling,
transportation and delivery of alcohol shall employ due care and attention at all times to
ensure:
a.

The delivery vehicle engine is not left running needlessly on or off the premises

b.

There shall be no obstruction of the public highway whilst deliveries are taking place

c.

No persons drivers/couriers shall engage in loud talking/shouting/door slamming or
emit loud music from their vehicle whilst on or off the premises

d.

All glass bottles/vessels, goods and waste to be handled carefully whilst being
transported into and out of the premises and to the clients' address to
prevent/minimise noise disturbance to residents within the vicinity.

44.

Records of all customers shall be stored for a minimum period of 6 months and shall be
forwarded to police or trading standards officers actively investigating allegations of
underage purchases from the business.

45.

The Premises Licence Holder shall arrange staff training in relation to underage sales. This
training shall include how to seek ID in accordance with the Challenge 25 proof of age
scheme. All staff training shall be documented and made available to the Responsible
Authorities on request.

Premises Licence

A - 11

Page 82
Annex 4 – Plans

Premises Licence

A - 12

Page 83
London Borough of Lambeth
Licensing Department
PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Tel: 020 7926 6108
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Summary
Premises Licence Number

Version Reference

Prem2490

21/00150/PRMNEW

Premises Details
Postal address of premises including Post Town & Post Code, or if none, ordnance survey
map reference or description
Theatro
69-71 Westow Hill
London
SE19 1TX
Telephone number
Where the licence is time limited the dates
Licensable activities authorised by the licence
Live Music (indoors only)
Recorded Music (indoors only)
Performances of Dance (indoors only)
Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance (indoors only)
Late Night Refreshment (indoors and outdoors)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (indoors and outdoors)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities
Live Music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Recorded Music
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Performances of Dance
Friday to Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Premises Licence Summary

B - 13

Page 84

Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Late Night Refreshment
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

23:00 - 01:00
23:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Sale by Retail of Alcohol
Friday & Saturday
Sunday - Thursday

11:00 - 01:00
11:00 - 00:00

Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.

The opening hours of the premises
Monday to Thursday
Thursday to Saturday
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday Monday

11:00 - 00:30
11:00 - 01:30
11:00 - 01:30

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off supplies
Alcohol for the consumption both on and off the premises
Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence
The Music Box Enterprises Ltd
128 Church Road
London
SE19 2NT

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable)
Registered Company Number

12413267

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply or
sale by retail of alcohol
Roya Harris
State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited
Restricted
Premises Licence Summary

B - 14

Page 85

Premises Licence Summary

B - 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 87

Annex C

Our Reference: 22/04226/LICAPP
Miss Bina Patel
Lambeth Licensing Authority
3rd Floor, Civic Centre
6 Brixton Hill
London
SW2 1EG
26th April 2022

Dear Ms Patel
I write on behalf of the London Borough of Lambeth Public Protection Department with
regard to the application for Premises Licence ((Variation Application) detailed below:
The Music Box Enterprises Ltd, Theatro - 69-71 Westow Hill,
London SE19 1TX- Reference : 22/00065/PRMVAR-Prem2490 .
The Public Protection Team request that you accept this as a formal representation against
the above-mentioned variation application on the grounds of the following licensing
objectives:
•

The prevention of public nuisance.

Lambeth Public Protection believe that the removal of the current condition 23 (detailed
below) from this premises license as requested in this variation application is in
contravention of the above licensing objective.
To remove condition 23 which states- “ All windows and external doors shall be kept closed
after 21:00hrs, or at any time when regulates entertainment takes place, except for
immediate access and egress to persons.”
This condition was placed on the previous premises due to the high level of noise complaints
from the local residents, specific to music and ASB, whilst the applicant may offer an
argument that the use of the premises will be different the current license still allows for
regulated entertainment as below:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Licensable activities authorised by the licence Live Music (indoors only)
Recorded Music (indoors only)
Performances of Dance (indoors only)
Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance (indoors only)
Late Night Refreshment (indoors and outdoors)
Sale by Retail of Alcohol (indoors and outdoors)

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:
1

Page 88

Live Music
Friday & Saturday 11:00 - 01:00
Sunday - Thursday 11:00 - 00:00
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Recorded Music
Friday & Saturday 11:00 - 01:00
Sunday - Thursday 11:00 - 00:00
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Performances of Dance
Friday to Saturday 11:00 - 01:00
Sunday - Thursday 11:00 - 00:00
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Friday & Saturday 11:00 -01:00
Sunday -Thursday 11:00 – 00:00
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00
Premises Licence A - 2: Entertainment Similar to Music/Dance
Friday & Saturday 11:00 - 01:00
Sunday - Thursday 11:00 - 00:00
Sunday prior to a Bank Holiday 11:00 to 01:00.
This is obviously a serious concern in relation to the premises being able to operate within
these times without further communication or warning should they decide to.
We also believe that this request is not in line with the premises application variation
guidance specifically in relation to removals of conditions which could include the removal or
amendment of out of date, irrelevant or unenforceable conditions, none of which apply to this
condition.
In addition you will notice that all the regulated entertainment conditions are only permitted
indoors only, again this was due to the multiple noise complaints received from residents
about loud music from the premises and ASB from Patrons.
The addition of the outside area for licensable activities including regulated entertainment is
of serious concern to Public Protection and we are confident that this addition will be
detrimental to residents and result in noise and ASB complaints.
And (2) additional variation to integrate the courtyard leading out of the lower ground floor at
the rear of the property into the current licence for the property as extension of the restaurant
2

Page 89

Page 90
From:
To:
Cc:
Subject:
Date:

Roya Eftekhari
Pam Riley
Matthew Onakoya
Re: LICENSE APPLICATION VARIATION -OBJECTION -THEATRO 69-71 WESTOW HILL SE19 1TX 22/00065/PRMVAR
25 May 2022 16:22:26

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Pamela,
Thank you for your email.
Although we appreciate the concern, we are Obviously disappointed with the objection
received from The Public Protection Team.
We’ve been operating from 69-71 Westow Hill SE19 1TX, since the end of September 2021
and have gone through some very tough times, as has the whole of the hospitality sector.
Despite this we have managed to continue to remain open and think we have demonstrated
within this time period that we are sensible operators. It’s a shame that we are still being
penalised for how the previous operator conducted their business. I would ask that The Public
Protection Team to have a look at our website
and also to look at
our instagram telltalecp. And also, they are of course welcome to come and have a look at the
restaurant to see what our business model is.
Ultimately, we are operating during a pandemic and have patrons that would prefer to sit
outside as per the government guidelines. We have a courtyard that we are unable to get a
license for, despite it falling within the rateable value of the business. There are plenty of bars,
pubs and restaurants that are within yards of 69-71 Westow Hill who open their windows,
doors and have late night licenses for their outdoor area. What we are requesting is not
unusual.
We are no longer a live music and would therefore be happy to have our live music activity
revoked from our current license, we hope this will put The Public Protection Team’s mind at
rest.
Should you have any further questions please do not hesitate to ask.
Best wishes,
Roya

From: Pam Riley <PRiley@lambeth.gov.uk>
Sent: 13 May 2022 14:00
To:
Cc:
gov.uk>
Subject: LICENSE APPLICATION VARIATION -OBJECTION -THEATRO 69-71 WESTOW HILL SE19
1TX - 22/00065/PRMVAR
Dear The Music Box Enterprises Ltd ,
The closing date for representations has now passed. I have to inform you that your application

Page 91
has received an objection from the Public Protection Noise Department. Please find attached a
copy of the representation for your information. Please do let me know if you have a response to
the representation served and I will open up mediation between all parties.
If the issue cannot be resolved, the application will need to go before a Licensing Sub-Committee
hearing to be determined. Once a hearing date has been scheduled, I will inform you of the time
and date it will go before the committee at which point you will be given the opportunity to
speak to your application.

Kind Regards
Mrs Pamela Riley
Licensing Officer
Public Protection & Regulatory Services (Licensing)
London Borough of Lambeth
Tel:
Email: priley@lambeth.gov.uk
Licensing Email: Licensing@lambeth.gov.uk
Website: http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/licensing/
Items by post should be sent to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Community Safety, PO Box 734, Winchester SO23 5DG
Items for courier or hand delivery should be delivered to:
London Borough of Lambeth, Community Safety, Civic Centre, 6 Brixton Hill, London, SW2 1EG

Sign up for email updates about Empire Windrush celebrations at:
http://www.lambeth.gov.uk/empirewindrush

LWE

Disclaimers apply - full details at www.lambeth.gov.uk/email-disclaimer

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 93

Annex D

Applicant proposed conditions
1. The courtyard shall be used as a dining area only and a maximum of 30 persons seated shall be
permitted.
2. The courtyard shall be used from 11:00 to 21:00 hours Monday to Sunday
3. All patrons shall be vacated from the courtyard area at 21:00 Monday to Sunday
4. The maximum number of people accommodation the basement area including the courtyard shall
not exceed 60 persons at any one time (excluding staff).
5. Children under the age of 18 years, shall be accompanied by a responsible adult at all times when
in the courtyard.
6. Recorded Music shall be permitted within the courtyard area between 11:00 to 21:00 Monday to
Sunday.
7. Trained members of staff shall be within the basement and courtyard areas to monitor and remove
any customers causing a nuisance.

This page is intentionally left blank

